#### MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

At the meeting of the Council for the District of Dover held at the Council Offices, Whitfield on Wednesday, 14 May 2014 at 6.30 pm.

Present:

Chairman: Councillor S R Nicholas

Councillors:

A S Pollitt J S Back R J Frost B W Bano B Gardner J A Rook T J Bartlett D Hannent M A Russell F J W Scales P M Beresford P J Hawkins T A Bond P G Heath A R Smith G J Hood C J Smith P M Brivio B W Butcher S J Jones J M Smith L A Keen R J Thompson P I Carter S S Chandler N S Kenton J F Tranter R S Walkden N J Collor G Lymer M D Conolly S C Manion P M Wallace G Cowan K Mills P A Watkins

J A Cronk K E Morris M R Eddy M J Ovenden

Officers: Chief Executive

Director of Finance, Housing and Community

Director of Governance

Director of Environment and Corporate Assets

Head of Regeneration and Development

Head of Inward Investment

Head of Communication and Engagement

Team Leader – Democratic Support

Democratic Support Officer Democratic Support Officer

#### 15 <u>APOLOGIES</u>

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J H Goodwin, P S Le Chevalier, S M Le Chevalier and P Walker.

#### 16 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

Councillor D Hannent declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in Minute No 18 by reason of his ownership of a property in Castle Street, Dover and withdrew from the meeting for the consideration of the matter.

Councillor C J Smith declared an Other Significant Interest (OSI) in Minute No 19 by reason of his issues with his planning application and appeal and withdrew from the meeting for the consideration of the matter.

#### 17 ANNOUNCEMENTS

#### (a) Manston Airport

The Leader of the Council spoke of the recent runway closure of Manston Airport. The closure would impact on the Enterprise Zone at Sandwich and on the area as a whole. The Leader expressed his support of its retention and would make appropriate representations as necessary.

#### (b) <u>Discovery Park</u>

That it was unclear at this time what implications, if any, there would be for the residual Pfizer staff at the Discovery Park in the event of a successful Pfizer bid for AstraZeneca.

#### 18 PRESENTATION OF PETITION - DOVER TOWN INVESTMENT ZONE

The Council received a petition from Mr A Shirley that had exceeded the threshold of 1,600 signatures required to trigger a council debate in accordance with Paragraph 8 of the Council's agreed petition Scheme. The petition requested that:

"We the undersigned petition the council to, in the persons of a) the Leader and Cabinet, b) the Scrutiny Committee and c) the Chief Executive and the Head of Regeneration, call a public meeting and present, within 8 weeks of the closure of this petition, a full and detailed summary of costs incurred, progress made and forward plans to secure the completion of the Dover Town Investment Zone. The presentation should allow questions from the floor without notice and provide full disclosure of status, costs (capitalised and expensed), plans, accountabilities, timeframes and reasons for past inabilities to deliver. We respect the existence of certain commercial confidence factors which should not be used as a shield to full and proper disclosure."

The petition scheme granted Mr Shirley as the Petition Organiser the right to address the Council in support of the petition. Mr Shirley raised concerns over the lack of tangible progress in delivering the Dover Town Investment Zone (DTIZ) development over the last decade and what he saw as a lack of transparency from the Council and its development partners. He also questioned whether the Council had sufficient skills in-house to deliver a project of this nature.

In response Councillor K Mills stated that in his capacity as Committee Chairman, the Scrutiny (Policy and Performance) Committee would be holding a meeting on 23 June 2014 in Dover to scrutinise the DTIZ which would be attended by senior council officers and key development partners. He stated that the meeting would be open to the public and advised that members of the public would be permitted to ask questions at the meeting.

Councillors F J W Scales, P M Beresford, M R Eddy and P A Watkins spoke to the meeting in support of the motion stating that it would be an opportunity to ask specific questions of the officers and developers however, highlighted that some information would be commercially confidential. Councillor P A Watkins reminded the meeting that previous meetings regarding the scheme had been held in public throughout the process and the press and public were able to attend.

It was moved by Councillor K Mills, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: (a) That Mr A Shirley's petition presentation be noted.

(b) That the meeting of the Scrutiny (Policy and Performance) Committee to be held on 23 June 2014 to consider the DTIZ development be noted.

(Councillor D Hannent withdrew from the meeting for consideration of this item of business by reason of his Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.)

#### 19 <u>REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT RESOURCES</u>

The Council considered the report of The Head of Paid Service to seek additional financial resources for the Council's Regeneration and Development function.

The Cabinet had approved the changes to fees and charges for pre-application advice and the use of fee income to create a pre-application service at its meeting on 12 May 2014.

Cabinet recommended that the Regeneration and Development budget be increased by £230k to enable an increase in staff resources to improve handling of the planning application caseload and that the Legal Services budget be increased by £100k to provide the necessary level of legal support to support the function.

It was moved by Councillor N S Kenton, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: That Council approved the increase of £330k in the Council's General Fund budget.

(Councillor C J Smith withdrew from the meeting for consideration of this item of business by reason of his Other Significant Interest in the matter.)

# 20 <u>FINANCING NEW HOUSING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM FOR EAST KENT HOUSING</u>

The Council considered the report of the Director of Finance, Housing and Community. The report sought approval to make loan finance available to East Kent Housing for the procurement of a new housing management IT system.

It was moved by Councillor S S Chandler, duly seconded and

- RESOLVED: (a) That Council approve the provision of loan finance to East Kent Housing for the procurement of a new housing management IT system, the amount and terms to be approved by the Director of Finance, Housing and Community in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Children's Services and Safeguarding, Youth and Community Safety.
  - (b) That subject to loan terms being agreed and procurement and implementation being undertaken to the council's satisfaction,

to transfer current system support budgets to East Kent Housing.

#### 21 REVIEW OF ON AND OFF-STREET PARKING CHARGE PERIOD

The Council considered the report of the Director of Environment and Corporate Assets.

At its meeting held on 14 May 2014 Cabinet had approved to reduce the on and offstreet parking charge period from 9am-6pm to 9am-5pm from dates to be determined by the Director of Environment and Corporate Assets. Decisions on any objections received during the consultation process would be delegated to the Director of Environment and Corporate Assets in consultation with the portfolio Holder for Property and Access.

It was moved by Councillor N J Collor, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: That Council approved a £64k supplementary budget.

(Councillor C J Smith withdrew from the meeting for consideration of this item of business by reason of his Other Significant Interest, declaring that he was a regular user of the leisure centre car park.)

### 22 <u>BYELAWS WITH RESPECT TO ACUPUNCTURE, COSMETIC SKIN PIERCING,</u> TATTOOING, SEMI-PERMANENT SKIN COLOURING AND ELECTROLYSIS

The Chairman advised the Committee that this item had been withdrawn from the agenda.

#### 23 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was moved by Councillor P A Watkins, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: That, under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the remainder of the business on the grounds that the item to be considered involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

## 24 <u>EXTERNAL WALL INSULATION FOR THE 'DORLONCO' SYSTEM BUILT PROPERTIES IN AYLESHAM</u>

The Council received the report of the Head of Asset Management, East Kent Housing.

It was moved by Councillor S S Chandler, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: That a supplementary HRA budget of £590,000 be approved.

The meeting ended at 8.26 pm